
            
 

The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and the environment by providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and recycling services. 

 

  
 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

May 4, 2023 
 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

 
 
 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the 
agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally 
limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or 
placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 

 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR: 

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion  

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board. 

A. Approve the Board Minutes for April 20, 2023 

B. Approve the Warrant List for May 4, 2023 

C. Approve Clark attending CSDA Legislative Days Conference in Sacramento May 16 -17 

D. Approve Murray attending the IRWA Spring Educational Seminar April 14, 2023 

E. Approve Aqua Contract Amendment 10 for Bidding Construction Services for the TWAS 
Enclosure/Sludge Basin and Reception Pad Project 

F. Approve Contract with West Yost for Grant Support 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B through F. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through F. 

 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS: 

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS: 

1. Board Policy B-180 Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention Policy and 
Complaint Procedure review with Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 

2. General Manager’s Report – verbal 

3. State Wide General Order for Sanitary Sewer Systems and Sewer System Management  

Plan – presentation 

4:40 PM 

 

4:35 PM 

Estimated 
Time 
 

4:30 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


May 4, 2023 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

4. Review Draft Proposition 218 Notice – written

4. EXPAND LOW INCOME  SEWER RATE ASSISTANCE TO MOBILE HOME OWNERS

Board to consider adopting Resolution No. 2023-2303 expanding the Low-Income Sewer Rate Assistance
Program (LISRAP) to recognize mobile homeowners as eligible households under LISRAP and to
continue the program in fiscal year 2023-24 at a cost not to exceed $25,000 in fiscal year 2023-24.

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

Other Reports

2. FORD
a. NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Fleet Management  Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCO, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

2023 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee,
2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts, 2023 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,  Other Reports

6. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

CLOSED SESSION: 

8. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR  – Agency designated representative : Gregory Ramirez
IEDA; Employee organization : IUOE Local 3:pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6

6:20 PM 

6:25 PM 

6:00 PM

6:00  PM 

6:45 PM 6:10 PM

6:30 PM 

2



May 4, 2023 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

OPEN SESSION: 

9. ADJOURNMENT

 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: MAY 8 AND MAY 18, 2023 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before May 1, 2023 4:30 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the Board 
Meeting of said Board to be held on May 4, 2023, at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas Valley Road, 
Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: April 27, 2023 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting. 

AGENDA APPROVED: Megan Clark, President David Byers, Legal Counsel 

7:30  PM 

3



 

 
 

 

5/4/2023 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



 

 

 Page 1 of 2 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 
To: Board of Directors 
From: Michael P. Cortez, PE, District Engineer 
 (415) 526-1518; mcortez@lgvsd.org  
Mtg. Date: May 4, 2023 

Re: Approve Aqua Contract Amendment 10 for Bidding and Construction Services for 
the TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin and Reception Pad Project  

Item Type:   Consent     X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes       X    No     (See attached) Not Applicable              . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to approve Contract Amendment 10 with Aqua Engineering for engineering support 
services during bidding and construction of the TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin and Reception 
Pad project in the amount of $156,280. 
 
BACKGROUND  
To avoid unnecessary delays towards completion and acceptance of the Secondary Treatment 
Plant Upgrade and Recycled Water Expansion (STPURWE) project, the District removed from the 
project scope and advertised the TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin and Reception Pad separately 
for public bidding as a single project. Aqua Engineering completed the design of these project 
components under the STPURWE project, and District staff anticipates the award of a 
construction contract in June 2023. 
 
In response to District staff request, Aqua Engineering submitted a proposal for engineering 
services during bidding and construction, on a time-and-expense basis not to exceed $156,280.  
 
Scope of services includes the following: 

1. Bid Phase 
a) The Sludge Basin and Reception Pad component of the project requires process 

shutdowns and proper construction phasing involving the TWAS facility, primary 
clarifiers, grit separators, digesters, and sludge pumps in the Equipment Building. 
Similarly, the TWAS Enclosure component requires installation of new piping and 
electrical modifications to the MCC-3 Building. Aqua will discuss the requirements 
during the pre-bid meeting and provide clarifications via bid addendum as 
necessary, so that bidders would understand the project requirements, develop 
efficient workplans, and prepare competitive bid pricing. 

b) Aqua will assist in the evaluation of bids to ensure reasonableness of pricing relative 
to engineer’s estimate, and that a contract will be awarded to the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder capable of satisfactorily performing the work. 

2. Construction Phase 
a) The project requires installation of submersible mixer, flow meter, air release valve, 

check valves, plug valves, progressive cavity pumps, and select building 
components, all of which will require review and approval for compliance with the 

Item Number______2E________ 

GM Review   _______CP_______ 

 

27

mailto:mcortez@lgvsd.org


 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

technical specifications. Aqua will review and prepare responses to contractor 
submittals and RFIs and operations related questions during construction. 

b) Aqua will attend construction progress meetings to assist District staff in ensuring 
that construction is in accordance with the contract documents.  

 
As discussed during the Board Meeting on March 2, 2023, District staff is hereby resubmitting 
Aqua’s proposal as a contract amendment to the original design services agreement for the 
STPURWE project dated April 8, 2015. As such, the current proposal’s terms and conditions have 
been removed and that of the original agreement shall govern. Staff further discussed Aqua’s 
proposal with the Engineering Subcommittee on April 5, 2023. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
1. Board approved design contract with Aqua Engineering for the STPURWE project on 

February 26, 2015. 
2. Board approved Call for Bids for TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin and Reception Pad Project 

on February 2, 2023. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$156,280, funding source will be through budget reallocation from other FY 2022-2023 CIP 
projects. 
 

 
Figure 1. Site Map 

28



 

 

533 W 2600 S Suite 275 Bountiful, UT 

P (801) 299-1327  F (801) 299-0153 

www.aquaeng.com 

February 28, 2023 
 
Mike Cortez, P.E. 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
300 Smith Ranch Road 
San Rafael, CA 94903 
 
Re: Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District – Additional Engineering Services 
 TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin & Reception Pad Construction Support Services  
 
Dear Mr. Cortez: 
 
AQUA Engineering (AQUA) thanks you for the opportunity to work with the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 

District (District) on this project.  The District identified additional items to be added to AQUA’s scope.  

AQUA has identified those items with a brief description and presents them in this letter along with the 

estimated cost to add these items to the scope of the project.  The items are separated into design services 

and bidding/construction support services as follows: 

 
 

Bidding & Construction Engineering Support Services 
Associated 

Fee 

1. Bidding & Construction Engineering Services – Engineering support services 
during bidding and construction activity including: 

A. BIDDING SERVICES 
i. Answer bidder/contractor questions during bidding. 
ii. Conduct pre-bid on-site walkthrough with potential bidders. 
iii. Assist the District in reviewing submitted bid packages from contractors.   

 
    B.  CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

i. Review submittals and RFIs from the contractor during construction.   
ii. Attend weekly construction and progress meetings (remotely) to be coordi-

nated by the construction manager.   
iii. Two (2) site visits during construction (in addition to the pre-bid walkthrough) 

to coordinate construction efforts and/or assist with startup/commissioning 
efforts.   

iv. Update O&M manuals to include new processes and equipment.  Update 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for new processes.   

v. Conduct pre-bid on-site walkthrough with potential bidders. 
vi. Assist the District in reviewing submitted bid packages from contractors.   

$156,280.00 

Total  $156,280.00 

 
A breakdown of the anticipated hours as well as a copy of the subconsultants fees is attached as Exhibit 
A.   
 
 
 
 

29



February 28, 2023 

Additional Engineering Services TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin & Reception Pad 

Page 2 of 5 

 
Exclusions & Assumptions 
 

1. Estimated bidding timeline is approximately 6 weeks from public release of package to bidding 
parties to review of submitted proposal packages.   

2. Estimated construction support services assumed to span 13 months from pre-construction/mobi-
lization to startup/commissioning.   

3. Review or design of any other processes, equipment, or facilities.   
4. Sample collection, lab work, or testing.   
5. Construction management services.   
6. Daily site inspections, special inspections, or other site observations beyond the site visits listed 

above.   
7. Programming/integration of new processes and equipment.   
8. Other engineering, design, or technical services beyond those specifically listed in the above 

scope.   
 
Any additional services requested in excess of those listed above will be performed at the rates and fees 
shown in the attached Exhibit B.   If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign below and return 
one copy to our office.  We will invoice you at the beginning of each month for services performed during 
the previous month.  Payment is due thirty days from the date of invoice.   
 
 
If additional information is required, please contact me.    
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 

Eric Sahm, Project Engineer 

AQUA Engineering 

Accepted by:   
 
              
(Print Name)     Authorized Signature            Date 

 

 

Attest: (If Required) 

 

              
(Print Name)     Authorized Signature            Date 

 

30



February 28, 2023 

Additional Engineering Services TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin & Reception Pad 

Page 4 of 5 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 

 

Hours Rate Total

1 Bidding & Construction Engineering Services

1.1 - Bidding Assistance (1 site Visit)

Principal 6 210.00$       1,260.00$         

Engineer III 34 195.00$       6,630.00$         

Subtotal 7,890.00$         

1.2 - Construction Site Visits

Engineer III 36 195.00$       7,020.00$         

Subtotal 7,020.00$         

1.3 - Weekly Meetings

Principal 28 210.00$       5,880.00$         

Engineer III 84 195.00$       16,380.00$       

EE Principal 10 210.00$       2,100.00$         

Subtotal 24,360.00$      

1.4 - Submittals, RFIs, and District/CM Coordination

Principal 36 210.00$       7,560.00$         

Engineer III 260 195.00$       50,700.00$       

Engineer II 80 175.00$       14,000.00$       

EE Principal 32 210.00$       6,720.00$         

EE Engineer III 90 195.00$       17,550.00$       

CAD III 40 135.00$       5,400.00$         

Subtotal 101,930.00$    

1.5 - O&M/SOP Updates

Principal 8 210.00$       1,680.00$         

Engineer III 40 195.00$       7,800.00$         

Engineer II 32 175.00$       5,600.00$         

Subtotal 15,080.00$      

816

156,280.00$ 

Task

Total Hours

Total for Bidding & Construction Services

LGVSD TWAS Structure & Sludge Storage - Construction Services

31



February 28, 2023 

Additional Engineering Services TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin & Reception Pad 

Page 5 of 5 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 

 
 

 

32



 
 

 Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors  

From: Curtis Paxton, General Manager  cpaxton@lgvsd.org 415-526-1511 

Mtg. Date: May 4, 2023 

Re: Contract Award – Grant Funding Identification, Tracking, and Application Services 

Item Type:   Consent__ X ____ Discussion______ Information______ Other________  

Standard Contract:    Yes_X__   No_____(See attached)  Not Applicable_______ 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to award a contract to West Yost to provide Grant Funding Identification, Tracking, and Application 
Services through the end of calendar year 2023 in the not-to-exceed amount of $74,960. 

BACKGROUND 
There are a number of State and Federal funding/grant opportunities for infrastructure projects that have 
been recently identified.  Although the District will be considering the addition of a finance/grant position in 
the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget, the position would most likely not be filled until early 2024 while District 
staff prepares the job classification and recruits for the position.  Management shares the concern the 
Board has expressed about missing opportunities for the available State and Federal grants and other 
financing options.  The highly-qualified team of funding specialists from West Yost will help the District 
minimize the risk of missing opportunities.   
 
A Request for Proposals (RFP) was not developed for the services this time due to the critical nature of the 
timing to get support for the District to identify and apply for the various funding opportunities available. 
The District prepared an RFP in September 2020 for these services, but had no responses to the RFP.  
The District subsequently awarded a contract to Kennedy Jenks in early 2021 for approximately $50,000 
for grant support services. District Management is pleased with the quality and breadth of experience the 
West Yost funding specialist team brings to the table. 
 
The Project Management and Grant Identification portion of the proposal is estimated to be approximately 
$34,350. The remaining amount of $40,700 would be allocated Grant Application Development once the 
opportunities for the District have been identified.  Monthly updates to the Funding Matrix and Projects 
Matrix will be provided to the Board. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:  
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
$74,960 (Funding will be included in the FY 2023/2024 Budget) 
 
  

Item Number________2F______ 

GM Review   _______CP_______ 

 

33

mailto:cpaxton@lgvsd.org


 

2020 Research Park Drive 

Suite 100 

Davis CA 95618 

 530.756.5905 phone 

530.756.5991 fax 

westyost.com 

 
 
April 13, 2023  SENT VIA: EMAIL 
 
 
Curtis Paxton 
General Manager 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
300 Smith Ranch Rd 
San Rafael, CA 94903 
 
SUBJECT:  Proposal to Perform Funding Identification, Tracking, and Application Services 
 

Dear Curtis: 

West Yost is pleased to present this letter proposal to the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (District) to 
provide strategic grant support services for the District’s wastewater-related infrastructure projects. Per 
our discussion on March 24, 2023, we understand that the District is interested in receiving funding 
services for tracking grant opportunities for prioritized wastewater projects and assistance in preparing 
grant applications. We believe that that the development of a funding strategy and tracking opportunities 
specifically for the District will enhance the ability to proactively identify and position for grant 
opportunities aligned with the District’s capital projects. This approach will also help to ensure that the 
District’s resources are allocated to funding pursuits that have the greatest return on investment. 
West Yost is currently tracking grant funding opportunities for many clients related to water, recycled 
water, wastewater, and distributed energy resources projects. A sample list of these clients includes 
Alameda County Water District, Moulton Niguel Water District, City of Modesto, City of Cloverdale, and 
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority. Our funding research for these clients enhances our ability to provide 
the District with cost-effective funding services. 

Our Funding Team offers full service from grant tracking and strategy to application preparation and grant 
administration, including labor compliance. Our senior Funding Team members are Monique Day, PE, 
Sheri Lasick, and Hawkeye Sheene. Bios for each of these key Funding Team members are included in 
Attachment A. Each team member has provided grant strategy, funding application, and grant 
administration support for over 30 municipal and water agency clients in California over the past 18 years 
or more. Monique and Sheri have worked together on several funding strategy, pursuit, and 
administration projects in the past ten years. On the grant administration side, Sheri has a wealth of 
experience with documenting labor compliance and assisting clients with grant audits. Hawkeye has 
18 years of funding experience in the field of water resources, with an emphasis on watershed funding 
and management. 

The first step to providing a customized funding strategy will include reviewing the District’s Wastewater 
Master Plan, currently in development, as well as the proposed list of planned Capital Improvement 
Projects (CIP) projects to gain an understanding of the District’s priorities and upcoming future challenges. 
With this insight, our team will identify an initial list of projects or project types that are well-suited for 
grant funding opportunities and then will match these projects/project types to relevant funding 
programs. If directed by District staff, we will coordinate our review and assessment of CIP priorities with 
the Climate-Energy-Reliability team at West Yost, who has been asked to prepare a Strategic Vision 

34



Curtis Paxton 

April 13, 2023 
Page 2 

 

 
 N-C-M-LGSD-LP-2023 

 

Scoping Plan for the District. With this information, West Yost will then develop a funding strategy in 
coordination with District staff that is aligned with the proposed Strategic Vision Scoping Plan. Once the 
strategy is in-place, our support effort will shift to grant program tracking to identify when application 
periods are open, application requirements, and application timing. This scope includes an allowance for 
writing grant applications, however, depending on the number and type of applications prepared, 
additional budget may be needed. A detailed description of the proposed activities is provided in the 
scope of services in the following section. 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The proposed scope of services includes: 

• Task 1. Meetings and Project Management 

• Task 2. Grant Identification and Tracking 

• Task 3. Grant Application Development (as-needed) 

Task 1. Meetings and Project Management 

Task 1 entails general project management and communications, as well a kickoff meeting and monthly 
check-in meetings. These activities are described in further detail below. 

Task 1.1. Project Communications and Management 

This task includes the regular project management that will occur throughout the duration of the project. 
Project management includes the preparation of monthly invoices with detailed work descriptions, and 
typical project budget, schedule, and resource management activities. 

Task 1.2. Kickoff Meeting 

West Yost will initiate this work by participating in a kickoff meeting with District staff to gain a better 
understanding of the District’s project planning and implementation goals. We will agree on 
communication protocols, both internal to the project team (West Yost and the District), and external 
(communications with potential funding agencies), and progress reporting. During the kickoff meeting, 
we will also begin developing the funding strategy by reviewing the District’s prioritized list of projects to 
be potentially grant funded and project status. This strategy initiation will assist West Yost in matching 
projects to funding opportunities. The budget assumes a virtual kickoff meeting and coordination with the 
Climate-Energy-Reliability team should the District choose to fund the Strategic Vision Scoping Plan. 

Task 1.3 Monthly Check-in Meetings 

Following the kickoff meeting, West Yost will conduct monthly video conference calls with District staff to 
inform the District of any new relevant funding opportunities, discuss upcoming grant application 
deadlines, receive District updates on projects identified for funding, and discuss the top priority grant 
pursuits. During these meetings, we will gather additional information from the District, including the 
urgency for potential projects, institutional knowledge and background information regarding these 
projects, and existing project documentation. We will review and discuss the prioritization of projects for 
future grant activities based on potential/value for funding and timing with existing funding programs. A 
key component of these meetings will be updates to the grant programs where draft and final guidelines 
have been released, as this will signal to the District the need for timely decisions for moving forward with 
funding applications. Monthly updates to the Funding Matrix and Projects Matrix will also be submitted to 

35



Curtis Paxton 

April 13, 2023 
Page 3 

 

 
 N-C-M-LGSD-LP-2023 

 

the District as part of the meeting materials. The proposed budget assumes six months of virtual monthly 
grant tracking meetings with attendance by two members of our Funding Team. 

Task 1 Deliverables 

• West Yost will provide kickoff meeting agenda and meeting notes 

• West Yost will provide monthly invoices with a summary of work 

• West Yost will provide monthly agenda and notes with brief list of action items and decisions made 
during the conference calls 

Task 2. Grant Identification and Tracking 

West Yost will identify existing grant programs relevant to the projects discussed during the kickoff 
meeting. The grant identification task will include: 

• Obtaining an understanding of the types of high priority projects the District has included 
as part of its CIP Program; 

• Researching and identifying grant opportunities applicable to the District’s high 
priority projects; 

• Providing opinions regarding how projects might be combined and/or expanded to make 
them more competitive for grant funding; and 

• Identifying potential opportunities to partner with neighboring agencies to determine if 
similar projects can be packaged together to compete within watershed-based or 
region-based grant opportunities. 

This work will be accomplished through the following subtasks, which include preparing a Projects Matrix, 
developing a Grant Funding Matrix, and preparing monthly funding pursuit status reports. 

Task 2.1. Projects Matrix 

West Yost staff will review the District’s current CIP and will develop a Projects Matrix to include relevant 
high priority CIP projects based on the criteria defined at the kickoff meeting in Task 1. With regular input 
from District staff, the Projects Matrix will be updated throughout the contract term as part of the ongoing 
grant tracking efforts (Task 2.3). 

Other elements that will be included in the Projects Matrix include: 

• Overall Ranking for Grant Funding Potential: Initial early assessment of project potential for 
grant funding, providing a relative “A”, “B”, “C” ranking for each project (“A” having the best 
chances for success), early in the process will allow our funding team to focus initial grant 
research on those projects with the greatest expected potential. 

• Identification of Initial Grant Funding Opportunities: Based on the technical review of the 
District’s CIP projects, specific known grant opportunities that fit a project’s objectives will 
be identified. Information about each specific grant opportunity will include the stage and 
time frame (and scheduled dates as available) to assist in prioritizing which opportunities 
should be addressed first and to assure near-term deadlines for potential funding are not 
overlooked. The actual preparation of individual project funding applications can be 
conducted under Task 3. 

36



Curtis Paxton 

April 13, 2023 
Page 4 

 

 
 N-C-M-LGSD-LP-2023 

 

Task 2.2. Grant Funding Matrix 

West Yost will develop a Grant Funding Matrix which will provide details of the funding programs 
identified for projects in the Projects Matrix. This matrix will be in both a simple, graphical form as well as 
in a more detailed table format. This matrix will be updated throughout the contract term as part of the 
ongoing grant tracking efforts (Task 2.3). The Grant Funding Matrix will include the following information 
regarding each funding program: 

• Summary information 

• Funding Agency, including contact information 

• Quantity of funds available 

• Eligible Project Types (e.g., planning, design, and construction/implementation). 

• Matching funds requirements, if applicable 

• Eligibility conditions 

• Competitiveness of the funding (i.e., percentage of projects funded), if available 

• Deadlines including dates for public workshops, comment deadline on draft guidelines, 
comment deadline on final guidelines, and application deadline 

• Key dates and other information regarding draft and final guidelines 

• Grant reporting requirements 

• Project elements compared to the grant agency’s ranking criteria 

• Pros and cons of pursuing the opportunity 

• District projects being considered 

• Project highlights compared to ranking criteria 

• Decisions/status on development of grant applications for specific District projects 

Task 2.3. Grant Tracking 

Once the initial grant identification subtasks (2.1 and 2.2) are complete, West Yost will move into the grant 
tracking phase. During this phase, West Yost will track grant programs and provide updates on the status 
of active/open grants, as well as other pending relevant programs. Grant tracking may include, but is not 
limited to, reviewing funding program websites, attending funding program webinars, attending regional 
water group meetings as appropriate (e.g., an Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) or 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA)) and meeting with funding agency staff as needed. This task will 
include monthly updates to the Projects Matrix and Grant Funding Matrix. 

Task 2.4. Monthly Funding Pursuit Status Reports 

In advance of each monthly check-in meeting, West Yost will prepare monthly Funding Pursuit Status 
Reports to highlight new information, including new opportunities and pending go/no-go decisions. These 
status reports will include recommendations for cost-effective grant opportunities and on-going grant 
reporting requirement considerations. These reports will document decisions made during the past 
month, including those made at the most recent check-in meeting. The most recent Projects Matrix and 
Grant Matrix will be included with status reports, and major changes to these matrices will be noted in 
the report. 

37



Curtis Paxton 

April 13, 2023 
Page 5 

 

 
 N-C-M-LGSD-LP-2023 

 

Task 2 Deliverables 

• West Yost will prepare a PDF Projects Matrix 

• West Yost will provide a PDF Grant Funding Matrix (graphic and detailed versions) 

• West Yost will provide monthly Funding Pursuit Status Reports 

Task 3. Grant Application Development (As-Needed) 

On an as-needed and as-requested basis, the West Yost team will support the District in preparing funding 
application packages and/or provide QA/QC on draft applications should District staff take the lead in 
drafting grant applications. The West Yost team is also available, as needed, to gather additional 
information to better position the District for funding, fill out application forms, format the application, 
and attend funding agency pre-submittal workshops. The West Yost team can meet with funding agencies, 
participate in regional meetings, or meet with groups such as an IRWM or GSA. 

The budget assumes that the West Yost team will provide up to approximately 200 hours of grant 
application support. 

Task 3 Authorization 

• This task will proceed only as requested and when authorized by the District Project Manager 

 
Task 3 Deliverables 

• Deliverables will be determined when this task is authorized 

PROJECT BUDGET 

West Yost’s proposed level of effort and budget for the tasks described above is shown in Table 1. 
West Yost will perform the Scope of Services described above on a time-and-expenses basis, at the billing 
rates set forth in West Yost’s 2023 billing rate schedule (Attachment B), with a not-to-exceed budget of 
$74,960. Any additional services not included in this Scope of Services will be performed only after 
receiving written authorization and a corresponding budget augmentation. 

Table 1. Estimated Project Hours and Budget 

Task 

Principal 
Engineer II, 

hours 

Principal 
Engineer II 

Cost at 
$307/hour 

Grant 
Specialist 
(Technical 

Specialist III), 
hours 

Grant 
Specialist 
(Technical 

Specialist III) 
Cost at 

$228/hour 

Grant 
Specialist 
(Technical 

Specialist I), 
hours 

Grant 
Specialist 
(Technical 
Specialist I) 

Cost at 
$178/hour 

Estimated 
Staff Cost, 

dollars 

Task 1. 
Meetings and 
Project Management 

16 4,912 42 9,576 8 1,424 15,912 

Task 2: 
Grant Identification 
and Tracking 

10 3,070 42 9,576 32 5,696 18,342 

Task 3: 
Grant Application 
Development 
(as-needed) 

14 4,298 66 15,048 120 21,360 40,706 

Project Budget Total $74,960 

38



Curtis Paxton 

April 13, 2023 
Page 6 

 

 
 N-C-M-LGSD-LP-2023 

 

SCHEDULE 

The kickoff meeting in Task 1 and the initial matrices in Task 2 are expected to take about eight weeks to 
complete from Notice to Proceed (NTP). Assuming the NTP from the District is provided by May 1, 2023, 
these initial tasks will be completed by late June 2023. The budget specified in this letter covers 6 monthly 
check-in meetings (part of Task 1) as well as 6 months of grant tracking (Task 2). The monthly check-in 
meetings and grant tracking activities are recommended to continue indefinitely to optimally maintain the 
District’s awareness of relevant funding opportunities. Therefore, if the District wants to continue this grant 
tracking service after the term of this contract, a contract amendment would be needed. 

The term of the agreement is anticipated to last for eight months (May 1, 2023 through December 31, 
2023). Once under contract, West Yost will coordinate with the District’s Project Manager to perform 
project-specific services within a mutually agreed upon timeline. 

West Yost will schedule a kickoff meeting upon receipt of NTP from the District. 

Thank you for providing West Yost the opportunity to be of service to the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District. Our team looks forward to working with you on this important endeavor. Please call if you have 
any questions or require additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
WEST YOST 

 

Monique Day, PE 
Project Manager  
RCE #69793 

Attachments: A:  Bios for Funding Specialists 
 B:  West Yost’s 2023 Billing Rate Schedule 

39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bios for Funding Specialists 

 

  

Attachment A 

40



1

Monique Day, PE
FUNDING PRACTICE AREA LEAD/ 
PROJECT MANAGER

Monique has 19 years of experience in 
civil and environmental engineering 
and has provided funding services to 
many clients throughout her career. 
Most of her project work has involved 
multi-stakeholder planning and 
implementation processes and funding 

pursuits. She is the project manager and strategist for 
providing grant strategy services for the Alameda 
County Water District, Moulton Niguel Water District, 
Stanislaus Regional Water Authority, Placer County 
Water Agency, Sacramento Area Sewer District, the 
City of Whittier Utility Authority, and the City of 
Modesto. She works closely with West Yost's funding 
team members on these projects to inform clients of 
relevant upcoming grant opportunities, to pursue 
funding opportunities, and to manage awarded 
opportunities. 

Sheri Lasick
SENIOR GRANT FUNDING SPECIALIST

Sheri has over 20 years of dedicated 
experience in grant writing, funding 
research, and funding management 
for public and non-profit entities. 
Sheri has a passion for assisting local 
public agencies in meeting the needs 
of the communities they serve by 

locating alternative funding sources and providing 
analytical services. Sheri has assisted cities, special 
districts, and counties in receiving over $100 million in 
grants and $12 million in low-interest loans for water 
and wastewater infrastructure projects, park and 
transportation improvement projects, and public 
safety activities. She has managed grant reporting 
requirements for multi-million-dollar projects with 
multiple funding sources. Sheri provides grant strategy 
and identification support, as well as application 
preparation and/or grant management. One of Sheri's 
specialties is providing labor compliance monitoring 
services post-grant award with 15 years of experience 
with California prevailing wage and Federal Davis-
Bacon Act. After working with West Yost for more than 
a decade as a contract employee or subconsultant, 
Sheri joined West Yost full-time in 2022.

Hawkeye Sheene
GRANT FUNDING SPECIALIST

Hawkeye Sheene has 18 years of 
environmental experience in the field 
of water resources, specifically 
watershed funding and management. 
She has been working with NPDES 
compliance since 2002 and has 
developed and implemented city and 

region-wide compliance, monitoring, reporting and 
outreach activities; guided the development of 
stormwater and urban runoff mitigation projects for 
municipalities, universities, and private developments; 
developed grant projects that were awarded over $14 
million; and managed large-scale grant projects to 
successful completion. As part of the West Yost 
Funding Team, Hawkeye prepares grant applications 
and provides grant management services to multiple 
clients.

41



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

West Yost’s 2023 Billing Rate Schedule 

 

Attachment B 

42



(Effective January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023)*

POSITIONS

ENGINEERING
Principal/Vice President $338

Engineer/Scientist/Geologist Manager I / II $319 / $334

Principal Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $288 / $307

Senior Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $259 / $272

Associate Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $215 / $231

Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $173 / $201

Engineering Aide $101

Field Monitoring Services $125

Administrative I / II / III / IV $92 / $115 / $138 / $152

ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY
Engineering Tech Manager I / II $332 / $334

Principal Tech Specialist I / II $305 / $315

Senior Tech Specialist I / II $279 / $291

Senior GIS Analyst $252

GIS Analyst $239

Technical Specialist I / II / III / IV $178 / $203 / $228 / $254

Technical Analyst I / II $128 / $152

Technical Analyst Intern $103

Cross-Connection Control Specialist I / II / III / IV $133 / $144 / $162 / $180

CAD Manager $201

CAD Designer I / II $156 / $176

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
Senior Construction Manager $322

Construction Manager I / II / III / IV $197 / $211 / $224 / $283

Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage Groups 4 / 3 / 2 / 1) $172 / $191 / $213 / $221

Apprentice Inspector $156

CM Administrative I / II $83 / $112

Field Services $221

2023 Billing Rate Schedule

LABOR CHARGES 

(DOLLARS PER HOUR)

■  Hourly rates include Technology and Communication charges such as general and CAD computer, software,

      telephone, routine in-house copies/prints, postage, miscellaneous supplies, and other incidental project expenses.

■  Outside Services such as vendor reproductions, prints, shipping, and major West Yost reproduction efforts, as well as 

      Engineering Supplies, etc. will be billed at actual cost plus 15%.

■  The Federal Mileage Rate will be used for mileage charges and will be based on the Federal Mileage Rate applicable to

      when the mileage costs were incurred. Travel other than mileage will be billed at cost.

■  Subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 10%.

■  Expert witness, research, technical review, analysis, preparation and meetings billed at 150% of standard hourly rates. Expert 

      witness testimony and depositions billed at 200% of standard hourly rates.

■  A Finance Charge of 1.5% per month (an Annual Rate of 18%) on the unpaid balance will be added to invoice amounts

      if not paid within 45 days from the date of the invoice.

* This schedule is updated annually Page 1 of 243



(Effective January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023)*

Equipment Charges

EQUIPMENT

2" Purge Pump & Control Box $300 / day

Aquacalc / Pygmy or AA Flow Meter $28 / day

Emergency SCADA System $35 / day

Field Vehicles (Groundwater) $1 / mile

Gas Detector $80 / day

Generator $60 / day

Hydrant Pressure Gauge $10 / day

Hydrant Pressure Recorder, Impulse (Transient) $55 / day

Hydrant Pressure Recorder, Standard $40 / day

Low Flow Pump Back Pack $135 / day

Low Flow Pump Controller $200 / day

Powers Water Level Meter $32 / day

Precision Water Level Meter 300ft $30 / day

Precision Water Level Meter 500ft $40 / day

Precision Water Level Meter 700ft $45 / day

QED Sample Pro Bladder Pump $65 / day

Stainless Steel Wire per foot $0.03 / day

Storage Tank $20 / day

Sump Pump $24 / day

Transducer Components (per installation) $23 / day

Trimble GPS – Geo 7x $220 / day

Tube Length Counter $22 / day

Turbidity Meter $30 / day

Vehicle (Construction Management) $10 / hour

Water Flow Probe Meter $20 / day

Water Quality Meter $50 / day

Water Quality Multimeter $185 / day

Well Sounder $30 / day

BILLING RATES

2023 Billing Rate Schedule

* This schedule is updated annually Page 2 of 244



 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

  Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: Teri Lerch, Executive Assistant/Board Secretary 
   (415) 526-1510; tlerch@lgvsd.org 

Mtg. Date: May 4, 2023 

Re: Board Policy B-180 (Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention 
Policy and Complaint Procedure) 

Item Type:   Consent    Action        Information   X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable     X        . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to review and discuss updated Board Policy B-180 Harassment, Discrimination and 
Retaliation Prevention Policy and Complaint Procedure with Employment Legal Counsel Lisa 
Charbonneau from Liebert Cassidy Whitmore. 
 
BACKGROUND  
Board Policy B-180 was given to the District’s Labor and Employment Legal Counsel, Morin 
Jacob of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore, to update. Enclosed are Legal Counsel’s red-lined revision, a 
draft final version and the original policy.  
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On February 16, 2023, the Board reviewed updated Policy B-180 (Harassment Prevention Policy 
and Complaint Procedure) with staff and requested it come back to the Board for approval.  
 
At the March 2, 2023, Board meeting, the Board had further questions about the policy revisions 
and requested that Labor and Employment Legal Counsel Morin Jacob attend a future meeting to 
clarify the updated changes to the policy. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

Item Number_______3.1_____ 

GM Review   _____CP______ 

 

45



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

B-180 HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION PREVENTION 
POLICY AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

Purpose 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) is committed to preventing harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation in the workplace.  

The purpose of this Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation Prevention Policy and 
Complaint Procedure (“Policy”) is to establish a strong commitment to prohibit and prevent 
harassment and retaliation by and against the District's elected officials; to define those terms; 
and to set forth a procedure for investigating and resolving internal complaints of harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation. The District encourages all covered individuals to report—as soon 
as possible—any conduct that is believed to violate this Policy. Acts of harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation by anyone affiliated with the District, including its elected officials, 
are strictly prohibited and are subject to sanctions and disciplinary measures, up to and 
including termination. 

The District has zero tolerance for any conduct that violates this Policy. Conduct need not 
arise to the level of a violation of state or federal law to violate this Policy. A single act by a 
District employee may constitute a violation of  this Policy and provide sufficient grounds for 
the District to discipline the District employee.  

This Policy establishes a complaint procedure by which the District will investigate and resolve 
complaints of harassment, discrimination and retaliation by and against covered individuals.  

The District expressly prohibits any retaliation against an employee because they filed or 
supported a complaint or because they participated in the investigation or complaint resolution 
process. Individuals found to have retaliated against an employee in violation of this Policy will 
be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary actions, up to and including termination.  

B-180-10 Covered Individuals and Scope of Policy. 

This Policy covers the following individuals: applicants for employment at the District; District 
employees regardless of rank or title; elected or appointed officials of the District; interns; 
volunteers; and contractors (“covered individuals”). 

This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment, internships, and volunteer 
opportunities, including, but not limited to, selection, hiring, placement, promotion, disciplinary 
action, layoff, recall, transfer, leave of absence, compensation, and training. 

 B-180-20 Definitions. 

B-180-20-1 Protected Classification. This Policy prohibits harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation because of an individual's protected classification. "Protected Classification" 
includes race, religion or religious creed, color, sex (including gender, gender identity, 
gender expression, transgender identity, pregnancy, and breastfeeding), sexual orientation 

LCW Final Draft no redlining

46



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

(including heterosexuality, homosexuality, and bisexuality), national origin, ancestry, marital 
status, age (40 or over), medical condition, genetic characteristics or information, military and 
veteran status, physical or mental disability, or any other basis protected by law. 

This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or retaliation for the following reasons: (1) an 
individual’s protected classification; (2) the perception that an individual has a protected 
classification; or (3) the individual associates with a person who has or is perceived to have a 
protected classification. 

B-180-20-2 Protected Activity. This Policy prohibits harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation because of an individual’s protected activity. 

Protected activity includes, but is not be limited to, the following activities: (1) making a 
request for an accommodation for a disability; (2) making a request for an accommodation for 
religious beliefs; (3) making a complaint under this Policy; (4) opposing violations of this 
Policy; or (5) participating in an investigation under this Policy.  

B-180-20-3 Policy Coverage. This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or retaliation 
for the following reasons: (1) an individual’s protected classification; (2) the perception that an 
individual has a protected classification; or (3) the individual associates with a person who 
has or is perceived to have a protected classification. 

This Policy expressly prohibits elected officials from harassing, discriminating against, or 
retaliating against applicants, officers, officials, employees, contractors, or members of the 
public for any of the reasons enumerated above.  

B-180-20-4. Harassment. This Policy prohibits harassment of a covered individual because 
of the individual’s actual or perceived protected classification. Note that harassment is not 
limited to conduct that the District's employees take. Under certain circumstances, 
harassment can also include conduct taken by those who are not employees, such as 
elected officials, persons providing services under contracts, or even members of the public. 
Harassment may include, but is not limited to, the following types of behavior: 

Speech, such as epithets, derogatory, offensive or inappropriate comments, slurs, or 
stereotypical comments, or verbal propositions made on the basis of a protected 
classification. This includes, but is not limited to, comments, stories, and jokes about 
appearance, dress, physical features, gender identification, and race. 

Physical acts, such as assault, impeding or blocking movement, offensive touching, or any 
physical interference with normal work or movement. This includes, but is not limited to, 
pinching, grabbing, patting, propositioning, leering, or making explicit or implied job threats 
or promises in return for submission to physical acts. 

Visual acts, such as derogatory, offensive or inappropriate, posters, cartoons, emails, 
pictures, or drawings related to a protected classification. 

Unwanted sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other acts of a sexual nature, 
where submission is made a term or condition of employment, where submission to or 
rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions, or where the conduct 

47



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

Resolution No. 2009-1872   Date Approved: July 9, 2009  

President of the Board 
 

Supersedes:  
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

 

is intended to or actually does unreasonably interfere with an individual's work performance 
or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment. 

B-180-20-5 Discrimination. This Policy prohibits treating a covered individual differently and 
adversely because of the individual’s actual or perceived protected classification; because 
the individual associates with a person who is or is perceived to be a member of a protected 
classification; or because the individual participates in a protected activity as defined in this 
Policy. 

B-180-20-6 Retaliation. Retaliation occurs when an employer takes adverse action against 
a covered individual because of the individual’s protected activity as defined in this Policy. 

“Adverse action” may include, but is not limited to, the following actions: (1) disciplinary 
action; (2) counseling; (3) taking sides because an individual has reported harassment or 
discrimination; (4) spreading rumors about a complainant or about someone who supports or 
assists the complainant or who participates in the investigation; (5) shunning or avoiding an 
individual who reports harassment or discrimination; or (6) making real or implied threats of 
intimidation to prevent or deter an individual from reporting harassment or discrimination. 

B-180-30 Guidelines for Identifying Harassment. Harassment includes conduct that 
another individual who is a member of the protected classification would find unwelcome or 
unwanted. Harassment may include the following: 

B-180-30-1 Harassment includes conduct which would be unwelcome or unwanted to an 
individual of the recipient's same protected classification and which is taken because of the 
recipient's protected classification. 

B-180-30-2 Conduct that is not intended to harass. Conduct may violate this Policy if the 
conduct is directed at, or implicates a protected classification and the recipient finds the 
conduct to be offensive or inappropriate, even if its well-intentioned conduct (e.g., gifts, 
over-attention, endearing nicknames, hugs).  

B-180-30-3 Conduct to which the recipient appears to have consented. The District does 
not recognize as a defense that the recipient appeared to have "consented" to the conduct 
at issue by failing to protest about the conduct. A recipient may not protest offensive or 
inappropriate conduct for many legitimate reasons, including the need to avoid being 
perceived as insubordinate or to avoid being ostracized or subjected to retaliation. 

B-180-30-4 Conduct about which no employee has previously complained. Simply because 
no one has complained about a joke, gesture, picture, physical contact, or comment or 
substantially similar conduct does not mean that the conduct is welcome, inoffensive, or 
appropriate. The fact that no one previously complained does not preclude anyone from 
complaining if the conduct is repeated. 

B-180-30-5 Conduct witnessed by a third party or about which a third party learns, even if 
they did not witness the conduct.. Visual, verbal or physical conduct between two people 
who do not find such conduct offensive or inappropriate can constitute harassment if a 
third party witnesses such conduct or learns about the conduct later and finds the conduct 

48



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

to be offensive or inappropriate. Conduct can constitute harassment even if it is not 
explicitly or specifically directed at a particular individual. 

B-180-30-6 Conduct can constitute harassment in violation of this Policy even if the 
individual engaging in the conduct has no intention to harass. Even well-intentioned 
conduct can violate this Policy if the conduct is directed at, or implicates a protected 
classification, and if the individual or an individual of the recipient's same protected 
classification would find it inappropriate or offensive (e.g., gifts, over attention, endearing 
nicknames, hugs). 

B-180-40 Complaint Procedure. A covered individual who believes they have been 
subjected to harassment, discrimination or retaliation may make a complaint to any 
supervisor, manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager without regard to any chain 
of command. 

Any supervisory or management employee who receives a harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation complaint should immediately notify the General Manager. Upon receiving 
notification of a complaint regarding discrimination, harassment or retaliation, the General 
Manager or their designee will complete and/or delegate the following steps: 

B-180-40-3 Within 24 hours of submitting the complaint to the General Manager, the General 
Manager shall inform, in a means designed to retain confidentiality, the District Counsel.  

B-180-40-4 Authorize and supervise the investigation of the complaint and/or investigate 
the complaint. The investigation will usually include interviews with the following 
individuals: 1) the complainant; 2) the accused (i.e., the subject of the investigation); 3) 
witnesses to the conduct at issue in the complaint; and 4) other persons who have relevant 
knowledge concerning the allegations in the complaint. Those informed of the investigation 
shall conduct themselves in a manner that will not compromise the integrity of the 
investigation, including, but not limited to, refraining from actions that may intimidate potential 
witnesses.  

The complainant and the accused have the right to be accompanied by an 
advocate(s) when discussing alleged incidents. Said persons shall be advised of this 
right prior to the commencement of such discussions. 

B-180-40-5 Review the factual information gathered during the investigation to 
determine whether the alleged conduct violated the Policy giving consideration to all 
factual information, the totality of the circumstances, including the nature of the 
conduct, and the context in which the alleged incidents occurred. 

B-180-40-6 Prepare a summary report of the determination as to whether the 
conduct violated this Policy and, if necessary, provide such report to the appointing 
authority (i.e., District Counsel or General Manager). If discipline or sanctions are 
imposed, the level of discipline or sanctions will not be communicated to the 
complainant. 

49



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

B-180-40-7 If conduct in violation of this Policy occurred, take or recommend to the 
appointing authority prompt and effective remedial action. The remedial action will be 
commensurate with the severity of the offense. 

B-180-40-8 Take reasonable steps to protect the complainant from further harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation. 

If the General Manager or District Counsel is the accused, or is a witness to the events at 
issue, an individual with higher authority will complete and/or delegate the steps enumerated 
above. 

The District takes a proactive approach to potential violations of this Policy and will conduct 
an investigation if its supervisory or management employees become aware that harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation occurred or may be occurring, regardless of whether the recipient 
or third party reports a potential violation. 

B-180-50 Disciplinary Procedures and Sanctions. Upon conclusion of the investigation of 
alleged harassment, discrimination or retaliation, appropriate action shall be taken against the 
appropriate party where a violation of this Policy is found, including legal actions where 
appropriate. 

B-180-40-1 Appropriate action shall be taken to remedy the victim's loss, if any, resulting 
from the harassment, discrimination or retaliation. 

B-180-40-2 Action taken to remedy a harassment, discrimination or retaliation situation shall 
be done in a manner so as to prevent further violations. 

B-180-40-3 Elected officials and employees complaining of harassment shall be 
protected thereafter from any form of reprisal and/or retaliation. Any adverse conduct 
taken because an applicant, employee, elected official or contractor has reported 
harassment, or has participated in the complaint and investigation process described 
herein, is prohibited. This Policy protects those who make good faith reports of 
harassment, and those who associate with an individual who is involved in reporting 
harassment or who participates in the complaint or investigation process, from 
retaliation. 

B-180-60 Confidentiality. The District will make every effort to assure the confidentiality 
of complaints made under this Policy to the greatest extent allowed by law. However, 
complete confidentiality may not be possible because of the District’s need to investigate 
the complaint and provide the subject of the complaint their due process rights, which 
include providing the subject of the investigation a copy of the complaint after the initi al 
investigatory interview, if requested. 

The District expressly prohibits an employee who is interviewed during the course of an 
investigation from attempting to influence other employees, including employees who 
may have witnessed the underlying conduct at issue, while the investigation is open and 
ongoing. 

50



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

An employee may discuss their interview with a designated representative from the 
employee’s employee organization and/or the employee’s legal representative. The 
District will not disclose a completed investigation report except as it deems necessary to 
support a disciplinary action, to take remedial action, to defend itself in adversarial 
proceedings, or to comply with the law or court order. 

B-180-70 Responsibilities. 

B-180-70-10 Each non-supervisor or non-manager is responsible for the following: 

1. Treating all individuals in the workplace or on District worksites with respect
and consideration. 

2. Modeling behavior that conforms to this Policy.

3. Participating in periodic trainings on personnel matters.

4. Cooperating with the District’s investigations pursuant to this Policy by
responding fully and truthfully and in a timely manner to all questions posed 
during the investigation. 

5. Taking no actions to influence the complainant or any potential witness while
the District’s investigation is ongoing. 

6. Reporting any act they believe in good faith constitutes harassment,
discrimination or retaliation as defined in this Policy, to their immediate 
supervisor or manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager. 

B-180-70-20 In addition to the responsibilities listed above, each manager and supervisor is 
responsible for the following: 

1. Informing employees under their supervision of this Policy.

2. Taking all steps necessary to prevent harassment, discrimination and
retaliation from occurring, including, but not limited to, monitoring the work 
environment and taking immediate and appropriate action to stop violations (e.g., 
removing inappropriate pictures or correcting inappropriate language). 

3. Receiving and responding to complaints in a uniformly fair and serious manner.

4. Documenting the steps taken to resolve such complaints.

5. Following up with those who have complained to ensure that the offensive
conduct about which they complained has stopped and that there have been no 
reprisals or retaliation or threats of reprisals or retaliation. 

6. Informing those who complain about harassment and/or discrimination of their
option to contact the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or California Civil Rights 
Department and file a complaint about such activity. 

51



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

Resolution No. 2009-1872  Date Approved: July 9, 2009 

President of the Board Supersedes: 
Last Reviewed: February 16, 2023 

7. Assisting and/or advising employees regarding this Policy.

8. Assisting in the investigation of complaints involving subordinate employee(s).

9. Where a complaint is substantiated, assisting in the development of a
recommendation concerning an appropriate corrective or disciplinary action in 
accordance with these policies. 

10. Implementing appropriate corrective or disciplinary actions.

11. Reporting potential violations of this Policy to the District Counsel or the
General Manager, regardless of whether an employee complained about such 
conduct. 

12. Participating in periodic training and scheduling employees for training.

B-180-80 Right to File Report with Outside Administrative Agencies. An individual 
possesses the right to report workplace harassment, discrimination or retaliation to the U.S. 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and/or the California Civil Rights 
Department (CRD). These administrative agencies provide a complaint process as well as 
certain legal remedies where the applicable agency determined that a violation of the law 
occurred. The nearest EEOC and CRD offices are listed in the government section of the 
telephone book, or employees can check the posters that are located on District bulletin 
boards for EEOC and CRD office locations and telephone numbers. 

52



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

B-180 HARASSMENT, DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION PREVENTION 
POLICY AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

Purpose 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) is committed to preventing harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation in the workplace.  

The purpose of this Harassment, Discrimination, and Retaliation Prevention Policy and 
Complaint Procedure (“Policy”) is to establish a strong commitment to prohibit and prevent 
harassment and retaliation by and against the District's elected officials; to define those terms; 
and to set forth a procedure for investigating and resolving internal complaints of harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation. The District encourages all covered individuals to report—as 
soon as possible—any conduct that is believed to violate this Policy. Acts of harassment, 
discrimination and retaliation by anyone affiliated with the District, including its elected officials , 
are strictly prohibited and are subject to sanctions and disciplinary measures, up to and 
including termination. 

This Policy establishes a complaint procedure by which the District will investigate and resolve 
complaints of harassment, discrimination and retaliation by and against covered individuals. 

The District expressly prohibits any retaliation against an employee because they filed or 
supported a complaint or because they participated in the investigation or complaint resolution 
process. Individuals found to have retaliated against an employee in violation of this Policy will 
be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary actions, up to and including termination.  

Policy 

The District has zero tolerance for any conduct that violates this Policy. Conduct need not 
arise to the level of a violation of state or federal law to violate this Policy. Instead a A single 
act by a District employee can may constitute a violation of violate this Policy and provide 
sufficient grounds for the District to discipline  the District employee, or other appropriate 
sanctions.  

This Policy establishes a complaint procedure by which the District will investigate and resolve 
complaints of harassment, discrimination and retaliation by and against covered individuals.  

The District expressly prohibits any retaliation against an employee because they filed or 
supported a complaint or because they participated in the investigation or complaint resolution 
process. Individuals found to have retaliated against an employee in violation of this Policy will 
be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary actions, up to and including termination.  

Harassment against an applicant or employee by a supervisor, management, employee, 
elected official, co-worker, member of the public or contractor on the basis of race, religion, 
sex (including gender, gender identify, gender expression, transgender, pregnancy, and 
breastfeeding), national origin, ancestry, disability, medical condition, genetic characteristics 
or information, marital status, age, sexual orientation (including homosexuality, bisexuality, 
or heterosexuality), or any other protected classification will not be tolerated. 

Original LCW Draft Edits

53



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

Policy 

This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of service as an elected District official 
and governs elected officials' conduct with each other, District employees, volunteers, 
interns, members of the public, and contractors. 

Appropriate sanctions will be instituted for prohibited behavior as defined below. 

Any retaliation against a person for filing a good faith complaint or participating in the 
complaint resolution process in good faith is prohibited. Individuals found to be retaliating in 
violation of this Policy will be subject to appropriate sanctions or disciplinary action, up to 
and including termination. 

B-180-10 Covered Individuals and Scope of Policy. 

This Policy covers the following individuals: applicants for employment at the District; District 
employees regardless of rank or title; elected or appointed officials of the District; interns; 
volunteers; and contractors (“covered individuals”). 

This Policy applies to all terms and conditions of employment, internships, and volunteer 
opportunities, including, but not limited to, selection, hiring, placement, promotion, disciplinary 
action, layoff, recall, transfer, leave of absence, compensation, and training. 

B-180-10 20 Definitions. 

B-180-1020-1 Protected Classification. This pPolicy prohibits harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation  because of an individual's protected classification. 
"Protected Classification" includes race, religion or religious creed, color, sex 
(including gender, gender identifyidentity, gender expression, transgender identity, 
pregnancy, and breastfeeding), sexual orientation (including heterosexuality, 
homosexuality, and bisexuality), national origin, ancestry, citizenship status, marital 
status, pregnancy, age (40 or over), medical condition, genetic characteristics or 
information, military and veteran status, and physical or mental disability, or any 
other basis protected by law. 

 

This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or retaliation for the following 
reasons: (1) an individual’s protected classification; (2) the perception that an 
individual has a protected classification; or (3) the individual associates with a person 
who has or is perceived to have a protected classification. 

B-180-20-2 Protected Activity. This Policy prohibits harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation because of an individual’s protected activity. 

Protected activity includes, but is not be limited to, the following activities: (1) making 
a request for an accommodation for a disability; (2) making a request for an 
accommodation for religious beliefs; (3) making a complaint under this Policy; (4) 
opposing violations of this Policy; or (5) participating in an investigation under this 
Policy.  

54



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

B-180-1020-2 3 Policy Coverage. This policy prohibits discrimination, harassment or 
retaliation for the following reasons: (1) an individual’s protected classification; (2) the 
perception that an individual has a protected classification; or (3) the individual 
associates with a person who has or is perceived to have a protected classification. 

This Policy expressly prohibits elected officials from harassing, discriminating against, 
or retaliating against applicants, officers, officials, employees, contractors, or 
members of the public for any of the reasons enumerated above. because of: 1) an 
individual's protected classification; 2) the perception that an individual has a 
protected classification; or 3) the individual associates with a person who has or is 
perceived to have a protected classification. 

B-180-1020-34. Harassment. This Policy prohibits harassment of a covered 
individual because of the individual’s actual or perceived protected classification. 
Harassment may include, but is not limited to, the following types of behavior that is 
taken because of a person's protected classification. Note that harassment is not 
limited to conduct that the District's employees take. Under certain circumstances, 
harassment can also include conduct taken by those who are not employees, such as 
elected officials, persons providing services under contracts, or even members of the 
public.  Harassment may include, but is not limited to, the following types of behavior: 

Speech, such as epithets, derogatory, offensive or inappropriate comments, or 
slurs, or stereotypical comments, or verbal  and propositionsing made  on the 
basis of a protected classification. This might includes, but is not limited to, 
inappropriate comments, stories, and jokes about on appearance, including 
dress,  or physical features,  or dress consistent with gender identification, or 
and race-oriented stories and jokes. 

Physical Aacts, such as assault, impeding or blocking movement, offensive 
touching, or any physical interference with normal work or movement. This 
includes, but is not limited to, pinching, grabbing, patting, propositioning, leering, or 
making explicit or implied job threats or promises in return for submission to 
physical acts. 

Visual acts, such as derogatory, offensive, or inappropriate, posters, cartoons, 
emails, pictures, or drawings related to a protected classification. 

Unwanted sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other acts of a sexual 
nature, where submission is made a term or condition of employment, where 
submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for employment 
decisions, or where the conduct is intended to or actually does unreasonably interfere 
with an individual's work performance or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive 
working environment. 

B-180-20-5 Discrimination. This Policy prohibits treating a covered individual 
differently and adversely because of the individual’s actual or perceived protected 
classification; because the individual associates with a person who is or is perceived 
to be a member of a protected classification; or because the individual participates in 
a protected activity as defined in this Policy. 

55



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

B-180-20-6 Retaliation. Retaliation occurs when an employer takes adverse action 
against a covered individual because of the individual’s protected activity as defined 
in this Policy. 

“Adverse action” may include, but is not limited to, the following actions: (1) 
disciplinary action; (2) counseling; (3) taking sides because an individual has reported 
harassment or discrimination; (4) spreading rumors about a complainant or about 
someone who supports or assists the complainant or who participates in the 
investigation; (5) shunning or avoiding an individual who reports harassment or 
discrimination; or (6) making real or implied threats of intimidation to prevent or deter 
an individual from reporting harassment or discrimination. 

B-180-20 30 Guidelines for Identifying Harassment.  Harassment includes conduct that 
another individual who is a member of the protected classification would find unwelcome or 
unwanted. Harassment may include the following: 

To help clarify what constitutes harassment in violation of this Policy, use the following 
guidelines: 

B-180-2030-1 Harassment includes any conduction conduct which would be 
"unwelcome or unwanted" to an individual of the recipient's same protected 
classification and which is taken because of the recipient's protected classification. 

B-180-30-2 Conduct that is not intended to harass. Conduct may violate this Policy 
if the conduct is directed at, or implicates a protected classification and the recipient 
finds the conduct to be offensive or inappropriate, even if its well-intentioned 
conduct (e.g., gifts, over-attention, endearing nicknames, hugs).  

B-180-2030-32 It is noConduct to which the recipient appears to have consented 
can still constitute harassment. The District does not recognize as a defense that 
the recipient appeareds to have voluntarily "consented" to the conduct at issue by 
failing to protest about the conduct. A recipient may not protest offensive or 
inappropriate conduct for many legitimate reasons, including the need to avoid 
being perceived as insubordinate or to avoid being ostracized or subjected to 
retaliation. 

B-180-2030-43 Conduct about which no employee has previously complained can 
still constitute harassment. Simply because no one has complained about a joke, 
gesture, picture, physical contact, or comment or substantially similar conduct does 
not mean that the conduct is welcome, inoffensive, or appropriate. Harassment can 
evolve over time. The fact that no one is complaining nowpreviously complained does 
not preclude anyone from complaining if the conduct is repeated in the future. 

B-180-2030-54 Conduct witnessed by a third party or about which a third party 
learns, even if they did not witness the conduct., can be harassment. Even vVisual, 
verbal, or physical conduct between two elected officials who appear to welcome 
the conduct people who do not find such conduct offensive or inappropriate can 
constitute harassment of a third applicant, officer, official, employee, intern, 
volunteer, or contractorparty witnesses suchho observes the conduct or learns 
about the conduct later and finds the conduct to be offensive or inappropriate. 

56



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

Conduct can constitute harassment even if it is not explicitly or specifically directed 
at an particular individual. 

B-180-2030-65 Conduct can constitute harassment in violation of this Policy even if 
the individual engaging in the conduct has no intention to harass. Even well-
intentioned conduct can violate this Policy if the conduct is directed at, or 
implicatesd a protected classification, and if an the individual or an individual of the 
recipient's same protected classification would find it inappropriate or offensive 
(e.g., gifts, over attention, endearing nicknames, hugs). 

B-180-30 40 Complaint ProcessProcedure. A n employee, job applicant, volunteer, 
intern, elected official, or contractor covered individual who believes he/she is they have 
been subjected to the victim of harassment, discrimination or retaliation may file a formal or 
informal make a complaint without fear of reprisal or embarrassmentto any supervisor, 
manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager without regard to any chain of 
command. 

B-180-40-1 An informal complaint is made verbally to District Counsel or the 
General Manager, or with any supervisory employee. 

B-180-40-2 A formal complaint is made in writing. It is preferred that a written 
complaint be submitted to the District Counsel or the General Manager, but it may 
also be submitted to any supervisory employee. 

Any supervisory or management employee who receives a harassment, discrimination, or 
retaliation complaint should immediately notify the General Manager. Upon receiving 
notification of a complaint regarding discrimination, harassment or retaliation, the General 
Manager or their designee will complete and/or delegate the following steps: 

B-180-30-1 An informal complaint is made verbally to District Counsel or the 
General Manager, or with any supervisory employee. 

B-180-30-2 A formal complaint is made in writing. It is preferred that a written 
complaint be submitted to the District Counsel or the General Manager, but it may 
also be submitted to any supervisory employee 

B-180-30-3 Any supervisor who receives a harassment complaint should notify the 
General Manager immediately. If the harassment complaint is made by or against 
the General Manager, the supervisor should notify District Counsel. 

B-180-3040-4 3 Within 24 hours of the submitting the complaint to the General 
Manager, the General Manager shall inform, in a means designed to retain 
confidentiality, the District Counsel.  

B-180-3040-5 4 Upon receiving notification of a harassment complaint, the 
General Manager or District Counsel shall authorize Authorize and 
supervise the investigation of the complaint and/or investigate the 
complaint. The investigation will usually include interviews with the 
following individuals: 1) the complainant; 2) the accused (i.e., the subject of 
the investigation) harasser; 3) witnesses to the conduct at issue in the 
complaint; and 34) other persons who have relevant knowledge concerning 

57



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

the allegations in the complaint. Those informed of the investigation shall 
conduct themselves in a manner that will not compromise the integrity of 
the investigation. , including, but not limited to, refraining from actions that 
may intimidate potential witnesses.  

 

B-180-30-6 The person initiating the complaintcomplainant and the person 
accused of the alleged harassmentaccused has have the right to be 
accompanied by an advocate(s) when discussing alleged incidents. Said 
persons shall be advised of this right prior to the commencement of such 
discussions. 

 

B-180-40-5 Review the factual information gathered during the investigation 
to determine whether the alleged conduct violated the Policy giving 
consideration to all factual information, the totality of the circumstances, 
including the nature of the conduct, and the context in which the alleged 
incidents occurred. 

B-180-40-6 Prepare a summary report of the determination as to whether the 
conduct violated this Policy and, if necessary, provide such report to the 
appointing authority (i.e., District Counsel or General Manager). If discipline 
or sanctions are imposed, the level of discipline or sanctions will not be 
communicated to the complainant. 

B-180-40-7 If conduct in violation of this Policy occurred, take or recommend to the 
appointing authority prompt and effective remedial action. The remedial action will be 
commensurate with the severity of the offense. 

B-180-40-8 Take reasonable steps to protect the complainant from further 
harassment, discrimination or retaliation. 

 

If the General Manager or District Counsel is the accused, or is a witness to the events at 
issue, an individual with higher authority will complete and/or delegate the steps enumerated 
above. 

The District takes a proactive approach to potential violations of this Policy and will conduct 
an investigation if its supervisory or management employees become aware that 
harassment, discrimination or retaliation occurred or may be occurring, regardless of whether 
the recipient or third party reports a potential violation. 

B-180-40 50 Disciplinary Procedures and Sanctions. Upon conclusion of the investigation 
of an alleged harassment, discrimination or retaliation, appropriate action shall be taken 
against the harasser appropriate party where a violation of this Policy is found, including 
legal actions where appropriate. 

58



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

B-180-40-1 Appropriate action shall be taken to remedy the victim's loss, if any, 
resulting from the harassment, discrimination or retaliation. 

B-180-40-2 Action taken to remedy a harassment, discrimination or retaliation 
situation shall be done in a manner so as to prevent further violations. 

B-180-40-3 Elected officials and employees complaining of harassment shall be 
protected thereafter from any form of reprisal and/or retaliation. Any adverse 
conduct taken because an applicant, employee, elected official or contractor has 
reported harassment, or has participated in the complaint and investigation 
process described herein, is prohibited. "Adverse conduct" includes but is not 
limited to: taking sides because an individual has reported harassment, 
spreading rumors about a complaint, shunning and avoiding an individual who 
reports harassment, or real or implied threats of intimidation to prevent an 
individual from reporting harassment. The following individuals are protected 
from retaliation:This Policy protects those who make good faith reports of 
harassment, and those who associate with an individual who is involved in 
reporting harassment or who participates in the complaint or investigation 
process, from retaliation. 

B-180-60 Confidentiality. The District will make every effort to assure the confidentiality 
of complaints made under this Policy to the greatest extent allowed by law. However, 
complete confidentiality may not be possible because of the District’s need to investigate 
the complaint and provide the subject of the complaint their due process rights, which 
include providing the subject of the investigation a copy of the complaint after the initial 
investigatory interview, if requested. 

The District expressly prohibits an employee who is interviewed during the course of an 
investigation from attempting to influence other employees, including employees who 
may have witnessed the underlying conduct at issue, while the investigation is open and 
ongoing. 

An employee may discuss their interview with a designated representative from the 
employee’s employee organization and/or the employee’s legal representative. The 
District will not disclose a completed investigation report except as it deems necessary to 
support a disciplinary action, to take remedial action, to defend itself in adversarial 
proceedings, or to comply with the law or court order. 

B-180-70 Responsibilities.  

B-180-70-10 Each non-supervisor or non-manager is responsible for the following: 

1. Treating all individuals in the workplace or on District worksites with respect 
and consideration. 

2. Modeling behavior that conforms to this Policy. 

3. Participating in periodic trainings on personnel matters. 

59



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

4. Cooperating with the District’s investigations pursuant to this Policy by 
responding fully and truthfully and in a timely manner to all questions posed 
during the investigation. 

5. Taking no actions to influence the complainant or any potential witness while 
the District’s investigation is ongoing. 

6. Reporting any act they believe in good faith constitutes harassment, 
discrimination or retaliation as defined in this Policy, to their immediate 
supervisor or manager, District Counsel, or the General Manager. 

B-180-70-20 In addition to the responsibilities listed above, each manager and 
supervisor is responsible for the following: 

1. Informing employees under their supervision of this Policy. 

2. Taking all steps necessary to prevent harassment, discrimination and 
retaliation from occurring, including, but not limited to, monitoring the work 
environment and taking immediate and appropriate action to stop violations (e.g., 
removing inappropriate pictures or correcting inappropriate language). 

3. Receiving and responding to complaints in a uniformly fair and serious 
manner.  

4. Documenting the steps taken to resolve such complaints. 

5. Following up with those who have complained to ensure that the offensive 
conduct about which they complained has stopped and that there have been no 
reprisals or retaliation or threats of reprisals or retaliation. 

6. Informing those who complain about harassment and/or discrimination of their 
option to contact the EEOC or DFEHCRD and file a complaint about such 
activity. 

7. Assisting and/or advising employees regarding this Policy. 

8. Assisting in the investigation of complaints involving subordinate employee(s). 

9. Where a complaint is substantiated, assisting in the development of a 
recommendation concerning an appropriate corrective or disciplinary action in 
accordance with these policies. 

10. Implementing appropriate corrective or disciplinary actions. 

11. Reporting potential violations of this Policy to the District Counsel or the 
General Manager, regardless of whether an employee complained about such 
conduct. 

12. Participating in periodic training and scheduling employees for training. 

60



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Policies and Procedures Manual 
 

 

10354357.1 LA105-001  

B- 180-5080- RightOption to File Report withto Outside Administrative Agencies. An 
individual possesseshas the option right to report workplace harassment, discrimination or 
retaliation to the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) and/or the 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH)Civil Rights Department 
(CRD). These administrative agencies provideoffer legal remedies and a complaint process 
as well as certainand legal remedies where the applicable agency determined that a violation 
of the law occurred. The nearest EEOC and DFEHCRD offices are listed in the government 
section of the telephone book, or employees can check the posters that are located on 
employer District bulletin boards for EEOC and DFEHCRD office locations and telephone 
numbers. 

61



Original

62



63



64



65



 

 
 

 

5/4/2023 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.2 

66



 

 
 

 

5/4/2023 
 

 State Wide General Order for Sanitary Sewer Systems and 
Sewer System Management Plan 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

 Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.3 

67



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\05042023\218 Notice\ASR Draft Prop 218.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: May 4, 2023 

Re: Review Draft Proposition 218 Notice 

Item Type:   Consent   Action        Information  X Other              

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X        
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to review the draft Notice to Property Owners and recommend any changes to the 
language in the notice. 

BACKGROUND 
The District is required by Proposition 218 to notify the public regarding an impending rate 
change and to set a Public Hearing date no less than 45 days prior to the Public Hearing where 
the increases in rates are to be considered.  Due to Marin County filing requirements, any 
Ordinance that would increase sewer rates must be adopted by the Board no later than July 5. 
 
The 45-day requirement requires the District to accelerate the timeline for receiving the draft 
sewer rate study and finalizing the Notice to Property Owners, which now will be presented on 
May 8, so that the Notice can be mailed by May 15. 
 
Today, staff is seeking Board input on the language in the Notice.  Next week the Board will 
receive the Notice to Property Owners with recommended rate increases for final consideration. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
None 
 

Attachments: 
1. Draft Notice to Property Owners – Public Hearing on Sewer Service Charge Increase 

  

Item Number_______3.4_______ 

GM Review   ______CP________ 

 

68

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Rate Change Explained

The District is proposing to increase rate revenue over a four year period, 
with increases of x% in the first year, and then x%, x%, and x% in the 
subquent years. For single family homes, this will result in a $X per 
month increase in the first year; another $X per month increase in the 
second year; a $X per month increase in the third year; and finally a $X 
per month increase in the fourth year.   These increases are necessary in 
order to ensure the District continues providing high quality services and 
protection of the environment. 

Sewer service charges are primarily used for the wide variety of activities 
that ensure the District is up-to-date in critical regulatory, operational, 
and maintenance areas, and that our facilities meet the community’s needs 
for today and the future. The proposed increases will help fund:
• Replacement of the District’s outdated operations control center, built 

in 1958 and renovated in 1985 and 1992
• Construction of needed improvements to the District’s largest 

collection system pump station
• Construction of the Smith Ranch combined force main sewer
• Ultraviolet (UV) disinfection system, flow equalization basin, and 

primary clarifier improvements
• Biosolids program to move from disposal to beneficial use

To cover the cost of these critical services and upgrades, the District 
proposes the following increases per year per sanitary sewer unit:

Effective Current Proposed Monthly increase
July 1, 2023  $x $x  $x
July 1, 2024  $x $x  $x
July 1, 2025  $x $x  $x
July 1, 2026  $x $x  $x

May 15, 2023

NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNERS

Why LGVSD is Proposing 
Increases in Sewer 
Service Charges

The proposed increases in sewer 
service charges will allow the Las 
Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
to continue its long-term capital 
improvement plan to modernize 
and upgrade its aging infrastructure 
and facilities, safeguard public 
health, protect the environment, and 
comply with increasing State and 
Federal regulatory requirements.  
For the past decade, the District’s 
Board of Directors has focused 
much of its attention on renovating 
and upgrading the District’s 
aging collection and treatment 
infrastructure.  
 
The District recently completed its 
Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade 
and Recycled Water Expansion 
Project, increasing treatment and 
water recycling capacity to meet 
permit requirements. It was the 
largest project at the District since the 
original treatment plant was built in 
the 1950s. The next phase of upgrades 
identified at the treatment plant 
require additional infrastructure 

June 29, 2023 Public Hearing on Sewer Service Charge Increase
The District is proposing a schedule of sewer service charge increases for a four-year period (from 
fiscal year 2023-24 through fiscal year 2026-27) to become effective on July 1, 2023. A public hearing 
on these proposed sewer rate increases will be held on Thursday, June 29, 2023 at 4:30 PM in the San 
Rafael City Schools Board Room, 310 Nova Albion Way, San Rafael, on the 2nd Floor. 

continued on page 269



Sanitary District No. 5 - Belvedere

Ross Valley Sanitary District  (Larkspur)

Ross Valley Sanitary District (Ross Valley)

Tamalpais Community Services District

Las Gallinas (Proposed Year 1)

Richardson Bay

Sanitary District No. 5 - Tiburon

Corte Madera

Las Gallinas (Current)

Sausalito - Marin City San District

Novato San

$0 $50 $100 $150 $200 $250

Sewer Rates
Tax Sudsidy*

Belvedere 

Larkspur

Ross Valley

Tamalpais CSD

Las Gallinas (proposed)

Richardson Bay

Tiburon

Corte Madera 

Las Gallinas (current)

Sausalito/Marin City

Novato

Monthly Bill Comparisons in Marin County as of April 2023

investment. Primary clarification and UV disinfection 
projects at the plant will allow the District to meet 
increasingly stringent water quality regulations. Flow 
Equalization and Treatment Plant Headworks projects 
will help the District weather large storm events during 
periods of heavy rain and prolonged ground saturation 
by allowing the extra wastewater that enters the sewer 
collection system, a process known as Infiltration 
& Inflow (I&I), to be held for treatment until the 
wastewater flow to the treatment plant subsides. 
Replacement of the digester and improving the solids 
process will  round out the major improvements 
currently identified. 
 
Plans are being considered for replacement of the 
original Administrative and Operations Building, 
which was built in the 1950s, as well as the laboratory, 
and needs to be brought up to current standards. 
The District is in the process of planning for a new 
Operations Control Center to be located at the 

treatment plant, pending design, regulatory, and 
environmental approvals. The project will be financed 
with the debt service expected to be between 20 and 30 
years.
 
The District operates a sanitary sewer collection system 
comprised of approximately 105 miles of gravity sewer 
lines, 6.7 miles of force mains, and 28 pump stations. 
There are 2,985 manholes and approximately 52.5 miles 
of privately owned laterals. The State Water Resources 
Control Board has ordered that the District implement a 
Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) which requires 
funding for and rehabilitation of the sewer collection 
system to maintain its usefulness. Along with a program 
of sewer main rehabilitation and replacement, the 
District is funding a sewer I&I reduction program as 
part of its SSMP.  Key projects in the collection system 
also include electrical system and communication 
upgrades for 7 pump stations, Lower Marinwood Trunk 
Sewer and Upper Terra Linda Truck Sewer and Siphon 
improvements, and Hwy 101 undercrossing projects.

“Why LGVSD is Proposing Increases” ontinued from page 1...

0

50

100

150

200

250

Sources: Tom’s Guide and Decisiondata.org

CELL
PHONE
(Family)

CABLE
TV

$180

$214

$85 $96 $xx
$81 $90 $95

MMWD

PROPOSED
LGVSD

CURRENT

22/23 LGVSD

PROPOSED

23/24

Monthly Bill Comparisons
Monthly Sewer Rate Comparisons

The amount of property tax revenue a sanitary 
district receives can depend on a variety of factors, 
including the size of the district, the types of 
properties within the district, and local tax policies.  
An equitable comparison of the financial burden 
for providing sanitary sewer services requires 
consideration of both property taxes and sanitary 
sewer assessments imposed.

* The value of tax subsidies have been estimated based on publically available 
financial data. The exact subsidy by customer class may materially deviate from 
the assumptions of our methodology.

Tax Subsidy*

70



Summary of LGVSD Sewer Service Charges for July 1, 2023 through 
June 30, 2027

Residential Rates Effective July 1, 2023
Residential Rates: This is the annual sewer service charge for single family homes or similar residential units 
such as condominiums and mobile homes. Multi-family residential units such as apartments are calculated at 
90% of the annual single family home sewer service charge. 

Current Basic Rate:  $x per year ($x per month)

Proposed Basic Rate:    2023/24 - $x per year ($x per month)   
   2024/25 - $x per year ($x per month)
   2025/26 - $x per year ($x per month)
   2026/27 - $x per year ($x per month)

Non-Residential Rates Effective July 1, 2023
Non-Residential Rates: The rates for non-residential customers are proportional to the increase in residential 
rates. Rates are calculated individually for each type of non-residential use as described below.

Domestic strength users: 
Commercial, office buildings, retail, 
churches, halls, public agencies, 
laundromats, service stations, 
medical offices, hospitals, 
convalescent/nursing homes, 
barber/beauty shops, and car washes

High strength users: 

 Bakeries

 Markets with disposals

 Restaurants/Cafes

 Mortuaries, mixed uses/ 
 other, hotels with restaurants

Industrial and other 
high-strength users

The annual sewer service 
charge rate times the average 
summer and winter water use 
times a strength factor of:

 1.0

 3.2

 2.6

 2.4

 2.0

Contact the District for
information and assistance

Schools without showers 
or cafeteria facilities 

Schools with showers 
or cafeteria facilities

To calculate water use, the 
District obtains the average 
of winter and summer water 
usage for each non-residential 
customer from the Marin 
Municipal Water District.
This data is then converted 
to equivalent single family 
residential units (or sanitary 
sewer units). Water used solely 
for irrigation and recycled 
water which does not enter 
the sewer system, i.e. water 
not used for toilet flushing, 
laundry, commercial car 
washes, etc., is excluded from 
the calculation.

User Classes        Rate Calculation           Water Use Calculation

0.01 times the annual sewer service charge rate per average daily 
attendance for students, faculty, and employees

0.02 times the annual sewer service charge rate per average daily 
attendance for students, faculty, and employees

71



Because of legal noticing requirements, you may receive more than one copy 
of this notice. This notice applies to all properties receiving service from 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District.

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300
San Rafael, CA 94903

Board of Directors
Megan Clark
Ronald Ford
Craig K. Murray
Gary E. Robards
Crystal Yezman

District Administration
Curtis Paxton, General Manager

PARTICIPATE IN THE RATE HEARING: 
Thursday, June 29, 2023 at 4:30 PM in the San Rafael City Schools Board Room

310 Nova Albion Way, San Rafael, 2nd Floor
Go to www.lgvsd.org/218 for more information

WEB: www.lgvsd.org     PHONE: 415-472-1734     EMAIL: info@lgvsd.org
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 

contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification prior to the meeting will enable the 
District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility to this meeting.

This notice is being sent pursuant to Government Code § 53756(d).   •   Printed on recycled paper using soy ink.

Presorted
Standard

US Postage
PAID

Unicorn Group

To Protest the Proposed Changes
Protests against the proposed changes in the sewer service 
charge must be submitted in writing to the District before 
the end of the public hearing to be held on June 29, 2023 at 
4:30 PM. Protests may be mailed/delivered to the District in 
advance to 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA 
94903. Protests must identify the owner(s) of the property 
or properties for which the protest is entered, and be signed 
by the property owner. If a majority of owners of affected 
parcels within the District submit written protests against 
the proposed changes, the District will not approve the sewer 
service charge increases. Please be advised that pursuant 
to Government Code Section 53759(d) there is a 120-day 
statute of limitation for any challenge to the new, increased or 
extended fee or charge.

Our Commitment to Excellence

District Transparency Certificate of 
Excellence by the Special District

Leadership Foundation, 2022

Excellence in Financial Reporting, 
Certificate of Achievement, 2021

How the District Keeps Costs Down  

The District strives to keep costs down by making 
timely investments in its  infrastructure and 

maintaining existing facilities. Compliance with 
regulatory requirements helps the District avoid 

costly fines.

72



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\05042023\LISRAP\ASR Expand Low Income Rate Assistance Resolution 2023-2303.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: May 4, 2023 

Re: Resolution 2023-2303 Expanding the Low-Income Sewer Rate Assistance 
Program and Continuing the Program for Fiscal Year 2023-24 

Item Type:   Consent   Action     X   Information     Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve Resolution No. 2023-2303 expanding the Low-Income Sewer Rate Assistance Program 
(“LISRAP” or “Program”) to qualified manufactured homes and mobile homeowners.  
 
Continuing the program in fiscal year 2023-24 and allocate $25,000 in Ad Valorem Property 
Taxes for use towards the program, authorizing staff to include funding in the budget. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In early 2022, the Board expressed interest in providing rate relief to low-income residents of the 
District.  Research was undertaken and it was determined that the District has the authority to 
implement a low-income rate assistance program as long as the District does not use Sewer 
Service Charge (SSC) rate revenue, which is subject to the substantive limitations under Article 
XIII D, Section 6 (Proposition 218) proportionality requirements under the California Constitution. 
Non-SSC revenue sources, such as ad valorem property tax revenues, were identified which can 
be used to fund the program. The Board approved LISRAP and allocated $50,000 for use in the 
program’s first fiscal year 2022-23. The program requires that any unused funds at the end of the 
fiscal year be released back to the general fund. 
 
The program was established to benefit single-family residential ratepayers who own their home. 
The District classifies manufactured homes or mobile homes as single-family residential property 
subject to the same SSC as a single-family residential property.  Although they may generally 
have the same meaning, for California property taxation purposes, the term mobile home is now 
obsolete and was changed to manufactured home in Revenue and Taxation Code section 5801 in 
January 1992. 
 
As part of the LISRAP application, homeowners in our District are required to provide a copy of 
their most recent Marin County property tax bill showing they were billed for the SSC in that year.  
It is the owners of the mobile home parks that pay the SSC for all manufactured or mobile homes 
on their property. Manufactured and mobile homeowners pay a monthly rental invoice to the 
mobile home park which includes other services such as sewer service. It is not the intent of the 
program to provide rate reduction relief to a private corporation.  
 
  

Item Number_________4_____ 

GM Review   _______CP_______ 

73

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\05042023\LISRAP\ASR Expand Low Income Rate Assistance Resolution 2023-2303.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
District staff has identified a simple solution to allow low-income manufactured or mobile 
homeowners the opportunity to participate in LISRAP.  For manufactured homes originally 
purchased new on or after July 1, 1980, they were automatically subject to local property taxes 
and are billed separately by the county assessor as property. If the manufactured home was 
purchased prior to the above date, homeowners are charged an In-Lieu License Fee (annual 
vehicle license fee) by the State of California Housing & Community Development. Allowing the 
submittal of the annual local property tax statement or the annual vehicle license fee statement 
will show proof of ownership.  Providing a copy of the billing statement from the mobile home park 
showing SSC assessed will show proof they are receiving service from the District.  Rebate 
checks will be issued in May to residential customers who meet the requirement.  The current 
program rebate amount is $112. 
 
Adoption of the attached resolution will allow staff to make these minor revisions to the program 
and application form. 
 
Report on LISRAP for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
The program was announced in the Spring 2022 Heron newsletter and linked to the District’s 
home webpage.  Few applications were being received and an article was added to the Fall 2022 
Heron newsletter reminding homeowners about the program. 
 
To date, the program has been utilized by 14 homeowners for a total cost of $1,568. There are 6 
applications pending and 2 of them are from mobile homeowners.  If all 6 applications are 
approved, it would result in an additional cost of $672. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
On April 21, 2022, the District Board of Directors established a Low-Income Sewer Rate 
Assistance Program (“LISRAP”) by Resolution No. 2022-2250, establishing a 10% sewer rate 
reduction to benefit single-family residential ratepayer households who participate in the PG&E 
California Alternate Rates for Energy (CARE) Program. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost to implement the program is dependent upon the number of PG&E CARE customers 
that utilize the program.  There are 1,835 CARE customers in the District comprised of both 
renters and homeowners.  Based on the inquiries received, it is anticipated that less than 10% of 
the eligible PG&E CARE customers are homeowners who would qualify for LISRAP. 
 
While the SSC for FY 2023-24 has not yet been determined, staff believes that the maximum 
annual program cost for next year will not exceed $25,000.   
 
Attachment: 

1. Resolution No. 2023-2303  

74



 

Resolution No. 2023-2303  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-2303 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
EXPANDING THE LOW-INCOME SEWER RATE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

TO QUALIFIED MOBILE HOMEOWNERS 
AND CONTINUING THE PROGRAM IN FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 
WITHIN THE LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (“District”) is authorized by the 

Sanitary District Act of 1923 (Health & Safety Code §6400 et seq.) to provide public 
services and facilities related to the acquisition, construction, replacement, maintenance 
and operation of wastewater collection facilities within the District’s service area; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District is empowered to prescribe, revise and collect fees, rates 
and charges related to said wastewater collection facilities pursuant to Health & Safety 
Code §6520.5; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District imposes Sewer Service Charges (“SSC”) in accordance 

with Government Code §66013; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 21, 2022, the District Board of Directors established a Low-

Income Sewer Rate Assistance Program (“LISRAP or Program”) by Resolution No. 
2022-2250 to benefit single-family residential ratepayer households; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Program is funded by non-SSC rate revenue such as Ad 

Valorem Property Taxes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Title 3 Chapter 1, Article 1(f) of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 

District Sewer Service Charge Ordinance classifies manufactured homes or mobile 
homes as single-family residential property subject to the same Sewer Service Charge 
as a single-family residential property; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Board now wishes to confirm expansion of the Program and 

make it available to eligible low-income manufactured or mobile home owner ratepayer 
households. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, hereby expands the Low-Income Sewer Rate 
Assistance Program (“LISRAP”), providing a ten percent (10%) Sewer Service Charge 
rate discount to manufactured home or mobile home owner ratepayer households, 
demonstrated by being enrolled in the PG&E CARE Program (California Alternate 
Rates for Energy Program) and for which the rate payer household must also include 
a customer of the District who pays the District Sewer Service Charges on their 
property tax bill or as billed by their mobile home park, beginning with fiscal year 
(“FY”) 2022-23. 

75



 

Resolution No. 2023-2303  Page 2 of 2 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that $25,000 of Ad Valorem Property Tax 
revenue received from Marin County in FY 2023-24 be allocated to fund the program, 
subject to Final Budget approval, with any unused funds at the end of the fiscal year 
being released to the general fund. Continuation of the program and any adjustment 
to the program or funding allocation will be reviewed annually as part of the budget 
process. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that implementation of the LISRAP, including 

updating the application process and oversight of the program to include manufactured 
homes or mobile homes, is hereby delegated to the General Manager or designee. 

 
 

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 
 
I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District, Marin County, California, at a meeting thereof held on the 4th day of May, 2023, 
by the following vote of the members thereof: 
 

AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 
NOES, Members: 
ABSTAIN, Members: 
ABSENT, Members: 
  

____________________________________ 

         Teresa L. Lerch, Board Secretary 
       
Approved: 
 
           (seal) 
_____________________________________ 
Megan Clark, Board President  
 

 

76



 

 
 

 

5/4/2023 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, 2023 Operations Control Center 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

FORD 
NBWRA, 2023 Operations Control Center Ad Hoc 
Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 2023 
McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  2023 Fleet Management 
Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, CASA Energy Committee, 2023 Biosolids Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2023 Engineering 
Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2023 McInnis Marsh Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2023 GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, 
2023 Development Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Marin Special Districts Association, 
2023 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-Committee re: STPURWE, 
2022 Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

77



78



79



80



81



82



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 6A 
                                                                                 DATE: May 4, 2023             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

83



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2023\Agenda Packet 2023\05042023\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

5/4/2023 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 6B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



 

 
 

 

5/4/2023 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

 Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8 

94


	Agenda 05042023
	1 Public Comment
	2A Board minutes 04202023
	2B Draft Warrant List 0502023
	2C Clark Conference Request
	2D Murray Seminar Request
	2E TWAS Enclosure Sludge Basin Aqua Contract
	2F West Yost Grant Support
	LP - LGVSD - Funding - 230413 - ap (002).pdf
	scope of Services
	Task 1. Meetings and Project Management
	Task 1.1. Project Communications and Management
	Task 1.2. Kickoff Meeting
	Task 1.3 Monthly Check-in Meetings

	Task 2. Grant Identification and Tracking
	Task 2.1. Projects Matrix
	Task 2.2. Grant Funding Matrix

	Task 2.3. Grant Tracking
	Task 2.4. Monthly Funding Pursuit Status Reports
	Task 3. Grant Application Development (As-Needed)

	Project Budget
	Schedule


	3.1 Board Policy  B-180 Harassment Policy Update
	3.2 General Manager Report
	3.3 SSMP Presentation
	3.4 Draft Prop 218
	4 Expand Low Income Rate Assistance Resolution 2023-2303
	5 Board Member Reports
	5.3 Murray other reports
	6A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7 Various Industry Articles
	8 Closed Session



